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NOTICE 

 
 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 30th Annual General Meeting of the members of the Company will be held on Friday the 
24th day of September, 2021 at 11:30 a.m. through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), to transact 
the following business: 
 
 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2021 
together with Reports of Board of Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon; 

 
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vimal D Shah, (DIN No.01506655), who retires by rotation and being 

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 
 

Date: 14th August, 2021                  By Order of the Board 
Registered Office:                           For, Norris Medicines Limited 
Plot No. 801/P,   
GIDC Industrial Estate,  
Ankleshwar-393 002 (Gujarat)                                    Sd/- 
CIN    : L24230GJ1990PLC086581                                        Vinay Rana 
Email : secretarial@norrispharma.com                              Company Secretary   
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NOTES: 
 
1) In view of the Continuing COVID-19 pandemic, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has vide its General Circular 

numbers 02/2021; 20/2020; 14/2020 and 17/2020 issued on 13th January, 2021, 5th May, 2020, 8th April, 2020 and 13th 
April, 2020 respectively read with Circular numbers SEBI/ HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 and SEBI/HO/CFD/ 
CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) on 15th January, 2021 and 12th May, 
2020 respectively (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Circulars”), allowed Companies to hold Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), without the physical presence 
of members at a common venue. Hence, in compliance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and the Circulars, the AGM of 
the Company is being held through VC/OAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the 
Company.  

 
2) Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) will be providing facility for voting through remote e-voting, for 

participation in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and e-voting during the AGM. Instructions for participating/joining in 
the meeting through VC/OAVM and e-voting during the AGM are explained hereunder after point no. 16.  

 
3) Since this AGM is being held through VC / OAVM, pursuant to MCA Circulars, physical attendance of the Members has 

been dispensed with. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 
purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the facility for 
appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM. Hence, the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and 
Route Map are not annexed to this Notice.  

 
4) Members are requested to participate on first come first served basis, as participation through VC/OAVM is limited. 

Members can login and join 15 (fifteen) minutes prior to the scheduled time of the commencement of the meeting and 
window for joining shall be kept open till the expiry of 15 (fifteen) minutes after the scheduled time. Participation is 
restricted upto 1000 members only. However the participation of large shareholders (i.e. shareholders holding 2% or 
more shareholding), promoters, institutional investors, directors, key managerial personnel, the chairperson of the Audit 
committee, Nomination and remuneration committee and stakeholders Relationship committee, Auditors etc. will not be 
subject to restriction of first come first served basis. 

 
5) In compliance with the MCA and SEBI Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report is being sent only 

through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company / Depositories. 
Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report will also be available on the Company’s website 
www.norrispharma.com , website of stock exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com  and on the website of CDSL 
(agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com.  

 
6) Pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, Corporate Members are required to send a scanned copy 

(PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization, etc., authorizing its representative to attend 
the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting to scrutinizer 
deveshrdesai2002@rediffmail.com and to the company at secretarial@norrispharma.com . 

 

7) The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining 
the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
8) The details pursuant to the Regulation (36) (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and other applicable provisions are annexed herewith as Annexure- A.  
 
9) All the work related to share registry in terms of both physical and electronic is being conducted by Company’s Registrar 

& Transfer Agent, Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd. 9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt.  J. R. Boricha Marg, Off. N. M. Joshi Marg,  
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Near Lodha Excelus, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400011. The Shareholders are requested to send their 
communication to the aforesaid address or via email at support@purvashare.com. 

 
10) The SEBI has vide Circular no. MRD/DOP/Cir-05/2009 dated 20th May, 2009 mandated the submission of PAN by every 

participant in the security market. Members holding shares in electronic form /physical form are therefore, requested to 
submit their PAN to the Company or the RTA. 

 
11) Pursuant to Sections 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant Rules made thereunder, 

Companies can serve Annual Reports and other communications through electronic mode to those Members who have 
registered their e-mail address either with the Company or with the Depository. Members who have not yet registered 
their e-mail address with the Company or their respective Depository are requested to do so. In the context of General 
Meeting through VC/OAVM, availability of email id of shareholders will play key role for sending  
notice or other important communication to shareholders. Hence, Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt Ltd. is offering the facility 
for all shareholders (physical as well as demat) to update their email id with it for sending the notice of AGM and annual 
report. The facility for updating of e-mail id of the shareholders shall be available on their website 
https://www.purvashare.com and the same can be updated by shareholders any time during the year. 

 
12) The Company has designated an exclusive Email ID: secretarial@norrispharma.com for redressal of Shareholders’/ 

Investors’ complaints/ grievances. In case you have any queries, complaints or grievances, then please write to us at the 
above mentioned e-mail address. 

 
13) Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice calling the AGM are available for inspection through 

electronic mode up to the date of the AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to 
secretarial@norrispharma.com  

 
14) The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from 18th  September, 2021  to 

24th September, 2021.(both days inclusive). 
  
15) Information and other instructions for Members relating to remote e-voting are as under: 

 
Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant Rules of the Act, and Regulation 44 of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is providing the facility to 
Members to exercise their rights to vote by electronic means. The Company has engaged the Services of Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for providing e-voting facilities. The e-voting rights of the Members / 
beneficial owners shall be reckoned in proportion to ordinary shares held by them in the Company as on 17th 
September, 2021 (cut -off date fixed for this purpose).  

 
The Company has appointed CS Devesh Desai, Practising Company Secretary ACS No. 11332, to act as the 
Scrutinizer, for conducting the scrutiny of the votes cast.  

 
16) The notice of Annual General Meeting along with the Annual report 2020-21 is being sent by electronic mode to those 

members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories.  
 

Detailed instructions for availing e-voting facility are as follows: 

(i) The voting period begins on 21st September, 2021 at 9.00 a.m. IST and ends on 23rd September, 2021 p.m. IST. 
During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as 
on the cut-off date (record date) of 17th September, 2021 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall 
be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue. 

http://www.norrispharma.com
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(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are 
required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it 
has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a 
negligible level.  
 
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This 
necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders. 
 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to 
enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat 
accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their 
vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also 
enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process. 
 

(iv)  In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility 
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update 
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetingsfor Individual 
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below: 
 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in Demat 
mode with CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi/Easiest facility, can login through 
their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to 
reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for 
users to login to Easi / Easiest 
arehttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit 
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System 
Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as 
per the information provided by company. On clicking the e-voting 
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is 
also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can 
visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/Easi 
Registration 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available 
on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the 
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see 

http://www.norrispharma.com
mailto:Email:secretarial@norrispharma.com
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the e-Voting option where the e-voting is in progress and also able to 
directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-
Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting 
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS “Portal or click   at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-
Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
Depository Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting 
option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 
you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 
login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 
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(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Shareholders other than individual Shareholders 
holding in Demat form & Physical Shareholders. 
 

1) The Shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 
 

2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 
 

3) Now enter your User ID  
 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company. 

 
4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

 
5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting 

of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  
 

6) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: 
 

 For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and Physical 
Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for 
both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 
 

 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence 
number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 
Bank 
Details 
 
 OR Date of 
Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your 
demat account or in the company records in order to login. 
 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please 
enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as 
mentioned in instruction (v). 

 
i. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 
ii. Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 

shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to 
mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by 
the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 23058738 
and 22-23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 
or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 

http://www.norrispharma.com
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company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any 
other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 
 

iii. For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice. 
 

iv. Click on the EVSN for the “Norris Medicines Limited” on which you choose to vote. 
 

v. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for 
voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option 
NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 
 

vi. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 
 

vii. After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If 
you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify 
your vote. 
 

viii. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
 

ix. You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page. 
 

x. If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code 
and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 
 

xi. Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting app can be downloaded 
from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while Remote Voting on your 
mobile.  

 
PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED 
WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES:  
 
1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id. 
 

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) 

 
3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 

Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS 
UNDER: 

 

1. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the CDSL e-
Voting system. Shareholders may access the same at https://www.evotingindia.com  under 
shareholders/members login by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available 
in shareholder/members login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed. 

  

2. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience. 
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3. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting. 

 
4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 

Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 
5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register 

themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast seven days prior to meeting mentioning 
their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The 
shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 
seven days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile 
number at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.  

 
6. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 

views/ask questions during the meeting. 
 
7. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as appropriate, 

to ensure the smooth conduct of the AGM. 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM/EGM ARE AS UNDER:- 
 
1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-

voting. 
 

2. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their 
vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible 
to vote through e-Voting system available during the EGM/AGM. 

 
3. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same 

shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility , then the votes cast by such 
shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 
shareholders attending the meeting. 

 
4. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will 

not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 
 
NOTE FOR NON - INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS AND CUSTODIANS 
 

 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to 
www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.  
 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 
 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The 

Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 
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 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the 
accounts, they would be able to cast their vote. 
 
 

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the 
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same 
 

 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. 
together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the 
Scrutinizer at the email address viz; deveshrdesai2002@rediffmail.com and to the Company at the email address viz; 
secretarial@norrispharma.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSLe-voting 
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the e-Voting System, you may refer the 
Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or 
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact Mr. Nitin Kunder (022- 23058738 ) or Mr. Mehboob 
Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-23058542). 

 
All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to: 

Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL)  
Central Depository Services (India) Limited,  
A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds,  
 N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East),  Mumbai - 400013  
Email: - helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com  
Call: - 022-23058542/43. 

 
 
 Date: 14th August, 2021         By Order of the Board 

Registered Office:           For, Norris Medicines Limited 
Plot No. 801/P,   
GIDC Industrial Estate,  
Ankleshwar-393 002 (Gujarat).          Sd/- 

  CIN : L24230GJ1990PLC086581                               Vinay Rana 
 Email  : secretarial@norrispharma.com                  Company Secretary   
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 “ANNEXURE-A” 

 
DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE 30TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS ARE AS UNDER: (REFER 
ITEM NO. 2 OF THE NOTICE) 
 
Name of Director Mr. Vimal D Shah 

 
Date of Birth 06-12-1976 
Brief Resume of the Director He is commerce graduate and has specialization in business 

management 
Date of Appointment 20th February, 2012 
DIN  01506655 
Experience (Yrs.) More than 15 years 
Expertise Business Management 
Other Directorship - Kruger Metal Melter Private Limited 

- Fab Metals Private Limited 

Inter-se relationship between Directors and 
other Key Managerial Personnel 

He is not related with any Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company. 

Shareholding in Company 34,350 Equity Shares 
( Vimal D Shah- as HUF) 
23,60,441 Equity Shares 

( Vimal D Shah- as Individual) 
Education Commerce Graduate 

 
 
 
 

http://www.norrispharma.com
mailto:Email:secretarial@norrispharma.com


NORRIS MEDICINES LIMITED       
Regd Office: Plot No. 801/P, GIDC Industrial Estate, Ankleshwar-393 002 (Gujarat). CIN:L24230GJ1990PLC086581 Tel.+91 2646 223462 Web:www.norrispharma.com Email:secretarial@norrispharma.com 

 
 
ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 
  13 

 

BOARD’S REPORT 
 

To, 
 
The Members, 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 30th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company together 
with Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2021.  
 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS: 
 

The Company’s financial performance, for the year ended on 31st March, 2021, is summarized below: 
                                               (₹ in Lacs) 

Particulars Year ended on 
31st March, 2021 

Year ended on 
31st March, 2020 

Profit / loss for the year before Interest, Depreciation and Tax (169.19) (207) 
Deducting there from:   
Interest 163.44 88.22 
Depreciation 66.70 72.88 
Profit/(Loss) for the year before Taxes (399.33) (368.10) 
Less: Provision for Deferred Tax Liabilities/Asset 96.86 (83.99) 
Less: Provision for Income Tax 0.00 0.00 
Profit/(Loss) after Taxes (496.19) (284.11) 
Add: Profit brought forward from last year (1422.79) (1138.68) 
Balance available for appropriation (1918.99) (1422.79) 
Less: Appropriations  
Dividend on Equity Shares 0.00 0.00 
Dividend Distribution Tax on Equity Shares 0.00 0.00 
Transfer to General Reserve 0.00 0.00 
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet (1918.99) (1422.79) 

 

 
In the last month of FY 20-21, the COVID-19 pandemic developed rapidly into a global crisis, forcing governments to 
enforce lock-downs of all economic activity. For the Company, the focus immediately shifted to ensuring the health and 
well-being of all employees, and on minimizing disruption to services for all our customers.  
 
The Company is in the business of Pharmaceutical manufacturing which is notified as essential service by the Ministry of 
Home Affairs, Government of India. The operations of the company were mildly impacted due to the mobility of labour 
and also the constraints of logistics during the initial phase of the lock down. The Management has at the time of 
approving the financial statements, assessed the potential impact of Covid 19 on the Company. 
 
 

2. DIVIDEND: 
 

In view of the financial position of the Company and the carried forward losses the Directors express their inability to 
declare any dividend for the year. Board of Directors sincerely hopes that members would appreciate and understand 
the situation for non-payment of Dividend. 
 

 

3. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:  
 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 134(1)(j) of the Companies Act, 2013, the company has not proposed to transfer any 
amount to general reserves account of the company during the year. 
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4. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATES: 
 

Neither the Company has any Subsidiary, Joint Venture nor Associate Company nor has any other Company become or 
ceased to be subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company of the Company. 
 

5. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 
 
Your Company continues to operate in the single business segment as that of previous year and there is no change in 
the nature of the business. 
 

6. REPORTING OF FRAUDS 
 

There have been no instances of fraud reported by the statutory auditors under section 143(12) of the Act and rules 
framed thereunder either to the Company or to the central government. 
 

7. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

As per the provision of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report has been included and is enclosed as (Annexure – B) to this Report. 
 

8. OPERATIONS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY 
 

Your Company recorded total sales and other income for approx ₹ 1230- Lacs. During the year under the review, 
Company has registered increase of approx.₹ 437/- Lacs. The Company has made loss of ₹ 332.63/-Lacs before 
depreciation as against a loss of ₹ 295.22/- Lacs in the previous year. 

 

9. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

In view of Paid up Capital and Net worth of the Company, being lesser then Rs. 10 crores and Rs. 25 crores 
respectively, Corporate Governance Report as prescribed in clause C of Schedule V to LODR is not included in terms of 
Regulation 15(2) of LODR. 

 

10. DIRECTORS 
 

There is change in Director Constitution during the financial year 2020-21. Mrs. Jayanti Chandrsekar, a women director 
of the company had resigned from her post due to personal reasons on 17th April, 2020. In place of to fill the vacancy, 
The Company had appointed Mrs. Susmita Mahaptra as women director on the board on 16th July, 2020. 

 
All the Directors of the Company have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being appointed as Directors in 
terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and not debarred or disqualified by the SEBI / Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs or any such statutory authority from being appointed or continuing as Director of the Company or any other 
Company where such Director holds such position in terms of Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) (10)(i) of Part C of Schedule V of Listing 
Regulations 

  
11. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 

Mr. Vimal D Shah, Managing Director, Mr. Iqubal Patel, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Vinay Rana, Company Secretary 
are Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. 

 

12.  INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 

All the Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under 
Section 149(6) of the Act read with Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (‘LODR’) 
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13. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, and LODR, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own 
performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its requisite Committees.  

 

The evaluation has been carried out with a well-structured questionnaires taking into consideration various aspects and 
roles of the Board and its Committees.  

 

The Board of Directors expressed its satisfaction with the evaluation process. 
 

14. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 
 

Four (8) Board Meetings were held during the financial year ended 31st March, 2021. The Board meetings were held on 
17th April, 2020, 4th June, 2020, 29th June, 2020, 16th July, 2020, 24th August, 2020, 11th November, 2020,13th February, 
2021 and 06th March, 2021. The gap between any two Board Meetings did not exceed 120 days. The attendance record 
of the Directors at the Board Meetings is as under:- 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Director Designation No. of Meetings attended/held 
during tenure 

1 Mr. Vimal D. Shah Executive Director  8/8 

2. Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Shah Non Executive 
Independent Director 

7/8 

3 Mrs. Jayanti Chandrasekar Non Executive 
Independent Director 

4/8 

4 Dr. Hiten Parikh Non Executive 
Independent Director 

3/8 

5 Mr. Azmathullah Non Executive 
Independent Director 

5/8 

6.  Mrs. Susmita Mahapatra Non Executive 
Independent Director 

4/8 

 
15. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

 
Four (4) Audit Committee Meetings were held during the financial year ended 31st March, 2021. The Audit Committee 
meetings were held on 29th June, 2020, 24th August, 2020, 11th November, 2020 and 13th February, 2021. Scope of the 
committee includes matters referred in section 177 of the Act and regulation 18 read with part C of Schedule II. The 
Committee inter alia reviews the Internal Control System, Scope of Internal Audit, Reports of Internal Auditors and 
Compliance of various regulations. The Committee reviews the financial statements and approves the same before they 
are placed before the Board. 
 
Below given table provides the attendance of the Audit Committee members: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Member Position No. of Meetings attended/held 
during tenure 

1 Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Shah Chairman 4/4 
2 Mrs. Jayanti Chandrasekar** Member 0/4 
3 Mr. Vimal D. Shah Member 4/4 
4 Mr. Shaikh Azmathullah** Member 4/4 
5.  Dr. Hiten Parikh** Member 1/4 
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**The Audit Committee was re-constituted two times during the year. Due to resignation of Mrs. Jayanti Chandrasekar 
on 17th April, 2020, the committee reconstituted on 29.06.2020 and add the Mr. Shaikh Azmathullah as member. Again, 
the committee re-constituted on 11th November, 2020 and add the Dr. Hiten Parikh as a member. 

   
16. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met once during the year under review on 24th August, 2020. Below given 
table provides the attendance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee members: 
  

Sr. No. Name of the Member Position No. of Meetings attended/held 
during tenure 

1 Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Shah Chairman 1/1 
2 Dr. Hiten Parikh Member 1/1 
3 Mr. Shaikh Azmathullah Member 1/1 

 
17. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee met once during the year under review on 29th June, 2020 
 

Below given table provides the attendance of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee members: 
 

Sr. No. Name of the Member Position No. of Meetings attended/held 
during tenure 

1 Dr. Hiten Parikh Chairman 1/1 
2 Mrs. Jayanti Chandrasekar** Member 0/1 
3 Mr. Vimal D. Shah Member 1/1 
4. Mr. Shaikh Azmathullah** Member 1/1 

 

Due to resignation of Mrs. Jayanti Chandrasekar on 17th April, 2020, the committee reconstituted on 29.06.2020 and add 
the Mr. Shaikh Azmathullah as member. 
 

18. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 
 

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 
thereunder and applicable provisions of the listing agreement and SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, to report genuine concerns of Directors and Employees. The Policy has been posted on website of 
the Company, www.norrispharma.com 
 

19. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 
 

The Management has put in place adequate and effective system and manpower for the purposes of Risk Management. 
The Company has a system based approach to business risk management backed by strong internal control systems. In 
the opinion of the Board, there are no risks which would threaten the existence of the Company 
 

The Company’s internal control procedures ensure compliance with various policies, practices and statutes in keeping 
with the organization’s pace of growth and increasing complexity of operations. The Company’s internal auditor team 
carries out extensive audits throughout the year across all functional areas, and submits its reports to the Audit 
Committee of the Board of Directors. 

   

20. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR): 
 

Considering the provisions of the section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, CSR requirements are not applicable to your 
Company. 
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21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION: 

 

There are no material related party transactions which are not in ordinary course of business or which are not on arm’s 
length basis and hence there is no information to be provided as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 

The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on the Company’s website. 
The web-link as required under Listing Agreement is as under: https://www.norrispharma.com/investor-relations.html 

 

22.  ENVIRONMENT & SAFETY OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE: 
 

The Company is conscious of the importance of environmentally clean and safe operations. The Company’s policy 
requires conduct of operations in such a manner so as to ensure safety of all concerned compliances environmental 
requirement regulations and preservation of natural resources. 
 

As required by the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the 
Company has formulated and implemented a policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace with a mechanism 
of lodging complaints.  All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. 
During the year under review, no complaints were reported to the Board. 
 

The summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the financial year 2020 – 21 
is as under:  

 

- Number of Complaints Received  : Nil 
- Number of Complaints Disposed off  : Nil 

23. DEPOSITS 
 

During the year under the review, the Company has not invited/accepted any deposits from public. 
 

24. LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
 

The Company has not given any loan, guarantees or investments under section 186 to any person or body corporate. 
 

25. LISTING OF SHARES AND SHARE CAPITAL 
 

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited (BSE) with scrip code number 524414. The Annual Listing 
Fees for the financial year 2020-21 has been paid to the Stock Exchange. During the year under review, there was no 
change in share capital. 

 

26. AUDITORS 
 

(a)  STATUTORY AUDITORS: 
 

M/s. H. N. Jadav & Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration Number- 103801W) were appointed as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of 5 years from the conclusion of the 26th Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) held on 23rd September, 2017 until the conclusion of the 31st AGM of the Company to be 
held in the year 2022. 
 

Pursuant to the Notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 7th May, 2018, amending section 139 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the mandatory requirement for ratification of appointment of Auditors by the Members at 
every AGM has been omitted and hence your Company has not proposed ratification of appointment of M/s. H. N. 
Jadav & Co., Chartered Accountants, at the forthcoming AGM.  
 

The Auditors’ Report is unmodified i.e. it does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or 
disclaimer. 
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(b)  SECRETARIAL AUDITORS: 

  
The Board of Directors of the Company appointed M/s. Devesh R Desai, Practicing Company Secretary, Vadodara 
as Secretarial Auditors for undertaking Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2021-22. The 
Secretarial Audit Report of M/s. Devesh R. Desai, Practicing Company Secretary for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2021 is annexed as (Annexure – E) 
 

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 
 

(c)  INTERNAL AUDITORS: 
 

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s. Dhiren Y Parikh & Co., Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditors of 
the Company for the financial year 2021-22. 

 

27. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES: 
 

The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is annexed herewith. (Annexure – C) 

 

28. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND 
OUTGO: 
 

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo are attached 
herewith. (Annexure - D) 

 

29. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN 
 

The extract of Annual Return pursuant to Section 92(3), 134 and any other provisions applicable if any of the Act, read 
with Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is available on web link http:/ 

/norrispharma.com/notice/announcements/. 
 

30. MATERIAL CHANGES: 
 

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company since the close 
of financial year i.e. since 31st March, 2021. Further, it is hereby confirmed that there has been no change in the nature 
of business of the Company. 

 

31. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
The Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 
2013, shall state that— 

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures; 

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at 
the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period; 

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities; 

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 
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e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

32. INSURANCE: 
 

All the properties and insurable interests of the Company including buildings, plant and machineries and stocks have 
been adequately insured. 
 

33. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 

The Board of Directors gratefully acknowledges the assistance and co-operation received from the Bankers all other 
statutory and non-statutory agencies for their co-operation. 

The Board of Directors also wish to place on record their gratitude and appreciation to the members for their trust and 
confidence shown in the Company. 

The Board of Directors would like to especially thank all the employees of the Company for their dedication and loyalty. 

 

Date: 14th August, 2021                By Order of the Board 
                        For, Norris Medicines Limited 
 
 
                Sd/- 

                          Vimal D Shah 
                           Managing Director 
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(ANNEXURE – B) 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

(A) Industry Structure and Development: 
The Company is engaged in the Health Care Industry and has two plants situated at GIDC, Ankleshwar, Gujarat. Both 
the plants of the Company are WHO cGMP approved. The Company is primarily engaged in carrying out contract 
manufacturing and Loan License Manufacturing for large Multinational and big Indian Pharma Companies. The 
Company has now renovated its sterile injectable plant and with this the plant is now as per international standards. 
The Company now expects the order flow from other major companies and the volumes would improve 

 
(B) Opportunities, Threats, Risks, Concerns: 

The Company is engaged in the ever expanding Health Care Sector but the threat faced by the Company include 
governmental controls on the pricing and the ever increasing cost of compliance, energy and manpower. The Company 
is, therefore, trying to spread its business across different countries and different market segments. The Company is 
also moving into Exports to other countries to mitigate the batch size issues and thus achieve economies of scale. 
Keeping in mind the aforesaid constraints the Company has worked out number of strategies including:  
 
(1) Reduction in raw material cost through efficient procurement by regularly negotiating with its key raw materials 

suppliers for price revision and exercising economic bulk order quantity sourcing once the restructuring is in 
place. 

 
(C) Segment wise performance: 

The Company has been operating in single segment only 
 

(D) Key Financial Ratio: 
Key Financial Ratio for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, is provided here-below: 
 

RATIO Unit % Inc/ (Dec.) 
F.Y. 

2020-21 
F.Y. 

2019-20 

Debtors Turnover Times (49.55) 5.39 2.72 
Inventory Turnover Times (24.91) 2.69 2.02 
Interest coverage Times 120.57 (1.47) (3.23) 
Current Ratio Times 31.45 0.70 0.93 
Debt Equity Ratio Times 154.65 (3.66) (9.33) 
Operating Profit Margin % 84.99 (19.38) (35.84) 
Net Profit Margin % 43.97 (32.60) (46.93) 
Return on net worth % 170.46 100.25 271.15 

 
Return on net worth has decreased due to decreased in PAT as compared to last year. 
 

(E) Outlook: 
The Company focuses on increase in volume, improve its efficiency by vigorously implementing cost reduction 
parameters viz. efficient procurement policy, applying various cost reduction methods, innovations, strengthening its 
quality parameters. The above steps would ultimately lead to production of quality products at competitive prices. In 
view of good business potentials, the Company's manufacturing infrastructure of WHO cGMP standards, strong 
product portfolio with growth brands present good outlook for the Company's business. 

 
(F) Financial Performance: 

The Gross Revenue of the Company was ₹ 1230- Lacs for the year as compared to ₹792/- Lacs for the previous year. 
The Company has made loss of ₹332.63/-Lacs before depreciation as against a loss of ₹ 295.22/- Lacs in the previous 
year. 
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(G) Internal Control Systems and Adequacy: 
The Company maintains a system of well-established policies and procedures for its internal control of operations and 
activities. The Company has appointed M/s. Dhiren Y Parikh & Co., Chartered Accountants, Vadodara, as the Internal 
Auditors to ensure proper system of Internal Control and its adequacy. 
 
The Company has proper and adequate control systems to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and protected 
against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and those transactions are authorized, recorded and reported 
correctly. These are viewed by Audit Committee and the suggestions made by them are implemented. The system of 
internal control also ensure that transactions are carried out based on authority and are recorded and reported in lines 
with generally accepted accounting principles. The Company also has a system of regular internal audit carried out by 
competent professional retained by the Company. The internal audit program is approved by the Audit Committee and 
findings of the internal audit are placed before the Audit Committee at regular intervals. The Company's use of 
“Pharmasuite” as its EPR platform helps in the exercise of timely control. 

 
(H) Developments On Human Resources/Industrial Relations Front: 

The Company continuously monitors its manpower requirement to ensure that it has adequate human skills 
commensurate with its needs. Industrial relations of the Company continue to be cordial. The Company has a 
programme of regular training and updating of knowledge of the human capital. 
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(ANNEXURE – C) 
 

DETAILS AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) 
OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014. 
 
1. Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the financial 

year 2020-21: 
Name of Director Ratio to Median Remuneration 
Mr.   Vimal Dhirendra Shah 1: 0.21 
Mrs. Jayanti Chandrasekar** ---- 
Mr. Shaik Amanullah Mohamed Azmathullah ---- 
Mr.   Sanjiv Kumar Shah --- 
Dr.   Hiten Parikh --- 
Mrs. Susmita Mahaptra --- 

 
** Mrs. Jayanti Chandrasekar had resigned during the year. 
 
2. Percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Managing Director, Company Secretary or 

Manager, if any, in the financial year 2020-21: 
Name Designation % Increase 
Mr. Vimal Dhirendra Shah Managing Director No Change 
Mr.   Iqubal Patel Chief Financial Officer No Change 
Mr. Vinay Rana Company Secretary 22.66% 

 
3. There is 0.03% change in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2020-21 compared to 2019-20. 
 
4. The number of Permanent Employees on Roll of the 

Company 
As on 31.03.2021 As on 31.03.2020 

 
61 

 
58 

 
5. Explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and Company performance: 
 

The Company’s overall turn-over Increased by 64.44 % during the year while there is 0.03% change in median 
remuneration. 
 

6. Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the company. 
 
There is 22.66% increase in the remuneration of Company Secretary for the financial year 2020-21 as compared to 
2019-20. 

 
7. Variations in market capitalization of the Company, Price Earnings Ratio as at the closing date of current financial year 

and previous financial year. 
Variations in the market capitalization Yes 
Price Earnings Ratio as at the closing date of current financial year (1.31) 
Price Earnings Ratio as at the closing date of previous financial year (0.98) 
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Percentage increase or decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the 
company in comparison to the rate at which the company came out with the last 
public offer in case of listed companies and in case of unlisted companies, the 
variations in the net worth of the company as at the close of current financial year and 
previous financial year. 

 
 

Not Applicable 

 
 
8. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than 

the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the 
percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and 
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remuneration. 

 
 

Not Applicable 

 
9. Comparison of the each remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the company 

Particulars Vimal Shah Iqubal Patel  Vinay Rana 
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Remuneration in F.Y. 2020-21 6,00,000 6,27,000 4,60,000 
Revenue 12,30,37,097 12,30,37,097 12,30,37,097 
Remuneration as % of revenue 0.48% 0.51% 0.37% 
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (3,99,33,613) (3,99,33,613) (3,99,33,613) 
Remuneration 
(as % of Profit Before Tax) N.A. N.A. N.A. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
 
10. Key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the 

directors 
No such variable component of 
Remuneration availed by any 

Director of the Company. 
 
11. Ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees 

who are not directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid 
director during the year 

NA 

  
The Board of Directors of the Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 
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 (ANNEXURE – D) 

 
INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 134(3)(M) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 8(3) OF 
THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 PERTAINING TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
 
A) Conservation of energy: 

(i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy; 

1. Saving of water and its reduction of treatment cost at ETP 

 2. Collection and re-use of steam-condensate at plants. 

 (ii) Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy; 

1. Rectification of utility machines to improve efficiency and save power. 

2. Replacement of conventional tube-light by LED at various locations. 

 (iii) Capital investment on energy conservation equipments; 

The company has undertaken efforts to rectify the shortfalls in the existing facilities in order to reduce the energy 
consumption by setting up efficient facilities. 

 
(B) Technology absorption: 

(i) Efforts made towards technology absorption   : N.A. 

(ii) Benefits derived like product     : YES 

     Improvement, cost reduction, product    

     Development or import substitution     

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported   : N.A. 

       during the last three years reckoned from the     

    beginning of the financial year)-                      

  (a) the details of technology imported                    : N.A. 

  (b) the year of import                                          : N.A. 

(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed       : N.A. 

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where  absorption has not  

taken place, and the reasons thereof     : N.A. 

(iv) the expenditure incurred on R&D    : N.A. 
 

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: 

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the 
year in terms of actual outflows.         
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           (Rs. In Lacs) 

 
 

 
For the period ended on 31st March, 2021 2020-21 2019-20 

Income   

Export (FOB basis) 22.54 4.26 

Expenditure   

Raw Materials (CIF basis) 0 0 

Capital Goods (CIF basis) 0 0 

Foreign Travelling Expenses 0 0 

Subscription, Publicity & Others 0 0 
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(ANNEXURE – E) 
 

FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the  

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
To, 
The Members, 
NORRIS MEDICINES LIMITED 
 801/P, 802 & 901/3- 4- 5 
GIDC Industrial Estate, 
Ankleshwar-393 002 (Gujarat) 
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Norris Medicines Limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my 
opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 (Audit period) complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Company for the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the provisions of: 
 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 
 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 
 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 
 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct 

Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 

Act’):- 
 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 

Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 

regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and 
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(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 
 

(vi) As informed to us the following other laws specifically applicable to the company are as under: 
 

1.  The Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 
2.  The Factories Act, 1948 
3.  The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946 
4.  The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 
5.  The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 
6.  The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 
7.  The Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 
8.  The Payment of Gratuity act, 1972 
9. The Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1922 
10. The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970 
11. The Industrial dispute Act, 1947 
12. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 
13. The Employment Exchange Act, 1959 
14. The Apprentice Act, 1961 
15. The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 
16. The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition   and    Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 
In respect of above laws specifically applicable to the Company, we have relied on information /records produced by the 
company during the course of our audit on test check basis and limited to that extent, the company has complied with the 
above laws applicable to the company. 
 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of following: 
 

1. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India; 
2. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. 

 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above. 
 
I further report that: 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.  
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 
least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 
 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations 
of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.  
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Place : Vadodara         For, Devesh R Desai., 
Date : 14th August, 2021        Company Secretaries 
         
           Sd/- 
           (Devesh R. Desai) 
           Proprietor 
           ACS No : 11332 
           C. P. No : 7484 
           UDIN: A011332C000784940  

 
 

ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 
To, 
The Members, 
NORRIS MEDICINES LIMITED 
801/P, 802 & 901/3- 4- 5, 
GIDC Industrial Estate, 
Ankleshwar-393 002 (Gujarat) 
 
 
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

 
2. I have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and the practices, I followed provided a 
reasonable basis for my opinion. 

 
3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. 

 
4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

 
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
Place : Vadodara         For, Devesh R Desai., 
Date : 14th August, 2021        Company Secretaries 
          
           Sd/- 
           (Devesh R. Desai) 
           Proprietor 
           ACS No : 11332 
           C. P. No : 7484 
           UDIN: A011332C000784940  
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MD / CFO COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

 
 

The Board of Directors, 
Norris Medicines Limited 
Plot No. 801/P,  
GIDC Industrial Estate, 
Ankleshwar-393 002 
 
We, Vimal Dhirendra Shah, Managing Director and Iqubal Ismail Patel, Chief Financial Officer do hereby certify the following; 

 
(a) We have reviewed Financial Statements i.e Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss for the quarter ended 

31st March, 2021 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 
 

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading, 

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards, applicable Laws & Regulations. 

 
(b) These are to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 

under review, which are fraudulent, illegal, or violative of the Company’s code of conduct. 
 

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting. We have evaluated 
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed 
the same to our Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal control of 
which we are aware and the steps we have taken or proposed to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 
(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

 
(i) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the quarter (if any), 
(ii)  Significant changes in accounting policies during the quarter and that the same have been disclosed in the 

Notes to the financial statements, and, 
(iii) Instances of significant fraud of which, we have become aware and the involvement therein if any of the 

Management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over the 
financial reporting. 

 
For, Norris Medicines Limited 

 
 
               Sd/-   Sd/- 
Place : Ankleshwar                    Mr. Vimal D Shah    Mr. Iqubal Patel 
Date : 14th August, 2021         Managing Director     Chief Financial Officer 
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CONFIRMATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT 
 

[Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V (Part D) of The Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

 
 
To,  

  
The Members  
Norris Medicines Limited   
 
 
This is to confirm that the Board has laid down a code of conduct for Board of Directors and senior management of the 
Company. It is further confirmed that all Directors and senior management of the Company have affirmed compliance with 
the Code of Conduct of the Company as at 31st March, 2021, as envisaged in Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V (Part 
D) of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
        
  

 
                   For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 

     NORRIS MEDICINES LIMITED 
Place: Ankleshwar       
Date: 14th August, 2021                     
             Sd/- 
                           Vimal D Shah 
                   Managing Director 

             DIN: 01506655 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
To the Members of  
Norris Medicines Limited 
 
Report on the financial statements 

 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NORRIS MEDICINES LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise 
the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then 
ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position and 
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 
 
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required 
to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments; the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of the accounting  
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments; the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the 
Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the standalone financial statements. 
 
 
 

http://www.norrispharma.com
mailto:Email:secretarial@norrispharma.com


NORRIS MEDICINES LIMITED       
Regd Office: Plot No. 801/P, GIDC Industrial Estate, Ankleshwar-393 002 (Gujarat). CIN:L24230GJ1990PLC086581 Tel.+91 2646 223462 Web:www.norrispharma.com Email:secretarial@norrispharma.com 

 
 
ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 
  32 

 

 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2021, and its 
profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act(hereinafter referred to as the "Order"), and on 
the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order. 
 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
  

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 and taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

(f) The Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial control over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 
2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company.  

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us: 
 

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at 31st March, 2021 on its 
financial position in its financial statements. 

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at 31st March, 
2021. 

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company. 

 
Place : BHARUCH       For, H. N. JADAV & CO., 
Date : 28th June, 2021      Chartered Accountants 
       
           
                Sd/- 
C-24, Ground Floor,       CA Harishchandra Naginlal Jadav 
Sardar Patel Municipal Market,      Proprietor 
Shaktinath,           M. No. 040525 
Bharuch-392001       (Firm Reg. No. 103801W) 

UDIN: 21040525AAAABU3764 
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ANNEXURE - A 

ANNEXURE REFERRED TO PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST 
MARCH, 2021 OF NORRIS MEDICINES LIMITED 
 

1. In respect of its fixed assets: 
(a) The Company has maintained records showing particulars, including quantitative details and general location of 

fixed assets. 
(b) During the year, all the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management. According to the 

information and explanations given to us, there was no material discrepancies noticed on such verification. 
(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company. 

 
2. As explained to us, all the inventory of the Company has been physically verified by the management at reasonable 

intervals and at the year-end. In our opinion, the frequency of the verification is reasonable. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, there was no material discrepancies noticed on physical verification of 
inventory as compared to the book records. 
 

3. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships 
or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

4. According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security. 
 

5. According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits during the year. 
 

6. To the best of our knowledge and explanations provided by the management, the maintenance of cost records has 
been prescribed by the Central Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and is 
maintained accordingly. 
 

7. According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory and other dues: 
 
(a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident fund, Employees’ 

state Insurance, Income Tax, Sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and 
other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities during the year. Based on our audit procedures and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, there are no arrears of statutory dues which has remained 
outstanding as at 31st March, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 
 
 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis the records produced before us by 
the Company, except for the cases stated below, there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income 
tax / sales tax / Service tax / customs duty / wealth tax / excise duty / cess, which have not been deposited on 
account of any dispute. 

 
Name of 
Statute 

Nature of 
Dues 

Amount under 
dispute not yet 
deposited (Rs.) 

Period for 
which the 
amount 
relates 

Forum where dispute is 
pending 

Central Excise 
Act, 1944 

Excise Duty 24,53,931 F.Y. 2000-01 Central Excise Tribunal, 
Ahmedabad 

Central Excise 
Act, 1944 

Excise 
Penalty 

25,00,000 F.Y. 2000-01 Central Excise Tribunal, 
Ahmedabad 
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8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or Government. The Company has not obtained any 
borrowings by way of debentures. 
 

9. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
and term loans during the year. 
 

10. According to the information and explanations given to us, we have not noticed or reported any fraud by the 
Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees during the year. 
 

11. The managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act. 
 

12. This clause of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to the Company as the Company is 
not a Nidhi Company. 
 

13. According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance 
with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the 
Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards. 
 

14. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. 
 

15. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with him and the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act, 2013 
have been complied with. 
 

16. This clause of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to the Company as the Company is 
not a required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934. 

 
 
Place : BHARUCH       For, H. N. JADAV & CO., 
Date : 28th June, 2021      Chartered Accountants 
       
         Sd/-            
C-24, Ground Floor,       CA Harishchandra Naginlala Jadav 
Sardar Patel Municipal Market,      Proprietor 
Shaktinath,           M. No. 040525 
Bharuch-392001       (Firm Reg. No. 103801W) 

UDIN: 21040525AAAABU376       
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ANNEXURE - B 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Norris Medicines Limited as of 31st. March, 2021 in 
conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial reporting issued by the 
ICAI. 
 
Place : BHARUCH       For, H. N. JADAV & CO., 
Date : 28th June, 2021      Chartered Accountants 
       
         Sd/-            
C-24, Ground Floor,       CA Harishchandra Naginlala Jadav 
Sardar Patel Municipal Market,      Proprietor 
Shaktinath,           M. No. 040525 
Bharuch-392001       (Firm Reg. No. 103801W) 
 
         UDIN: 21040525AAAABU3764 
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                                        BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31-MAR-2021                   In ₹ (Rupees) 
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        STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31-MAR-2021    In ₹ (Rupees) 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31-MAR-2021  In ₹ (Rupees) 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31.03.2021 
 

1.  STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
 

a)  These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the 
‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

 
The Company's financial statements up to and for the year ended 31 March 2021 were  in accordance with the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions 
of the Act. 

 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating 
cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature 
of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash 
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-
current classification of assets and liabilities. 

 
2. FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY 

 
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Company's functional currency. 

 
3. BASIS FOR MEASUREMENT 

 
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:    

 
Items      Measurement basis 

 
Certain financial assets and liabilities  Fair value 

 
4. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS 

 
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates. 

 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized prospectively. 
 

5. CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION 
 
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating 
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 

   
 Assets: 
 
 An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
  

a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle; 
b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
c) it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or 
d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting date. 
e) all other assets are classified as noncurrent. 
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Liabilities: 
 
a) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle; 
b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or 
d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by 
the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 

e) current assets/ liabilities include the current portion of non-current assets/ liabilities respectively. 
f) all other liabilities are classified as noncurrent. 

 
6. MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUES   

 
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both 
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. 

 
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation 
techniques as follows: 
 
- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 
 
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as 
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value 
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy 
as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 

 
The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during 
which the change has occurred. 

 
7. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial 
statements unless otherwise indicated. 

 
7.1 Financial instruments 
 

a. Recognition and initial measurement 
Trade receivables are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial 
liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 
 
A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value 
through profit and loss ('FVTPL'), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition. 
 

b. Classification and subsequent measurement 
 
Financial assets: 
 
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at 

- amortised cost; or 
  - FVTPL 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company 
changes its business model for managing financial assets. 
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A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as 
at FVTPL 
 

− the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash 
flows; and 
− the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on  the principal amount outstanding. 
 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at 
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate 
a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL 
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 
 
Financial assets: Business model assessment 

 
The company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a 
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to 
management. The information considered includes: 
 
− the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include 
whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest 
rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash 
outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets; 
 
  – how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the company’s management; 
 
  – the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business 
model) and how those risks are managed; 
 
  – the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and 
expectations about future sales activity. 
 
Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered 
sales for this purpose, consistent with the company’s continuing recognition of the assets. 
 
Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis 
are measured at FVTPL. 
 
Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest 
 
For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial 
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with 
the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. 
liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. 
 
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the company 
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a 
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this 
condition. In making this assessment, the company considers: 
 
− contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows; 
− terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features; 
− prepayment and extension features; and 
− terms that limit the company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non‑recourse features). 
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A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment 
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,  
 
which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a 
financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or 
requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but 
unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is 
treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition. 
 
Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 
 
Financial assets at FVTPL- These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including 

any interest or dividend income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
 
Financial assets at amortised cost- These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 

interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest 
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in 
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss. 

 
Financial liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at 

FVTPL if it is classified as held‑for‑trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, 
are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. 
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss. 

 
c. Derecognition 

 
Financial assets 
 
The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor 
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. 
 
If the company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains 
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not 
derecognized. 

 
Financial liabilities 

 
The company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or 
expire. 

 
The company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the 
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is 
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the 
new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss. 

 
d.  Offsetting 

 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and 
only when, the company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle 
them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
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7.2 Cash and cash equivalents 
  

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of 
three months or less which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 

 
7.3 Cash flow statement 
 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash 
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated. 
 

7.4 Revenue recognition 
 

 Revenue from operations 
Income from sale of power is recognized on the supply of units generated from the plant to  the grid, as per the terms 
of the PPA entered into with the customers. Cost and earnings in excess of billings are recognized as unbilled 
revenue. 
 

7.5 Property, plant and equipment 
   
 Recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import 
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost 
of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the 
item and restoring the site on which it is located. 
 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the 
expenditure will flow to the company. 
 
If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives then they are accounted as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 
 
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of profit and loss. 
 
Depreciation 
 
Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the Straight Line method over the useful lives of assets estimated by 
the Management, which coincide with useful life specified in the Schedule II of the Act except in case of the Plant and 
equipment, in whose case the life of the assets has been estimated ranging from 14 to 25 years in case of Solar 
power generation based on technical assessment taking into account the nature of assets, the estimated usage of 
the assets, the operating condition of the assets, anticipated technical changes, manufacturer warranties and 
maintenance support. Depreciation for assets purchased/ sold during the year is proportionately charged. 
 
Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if 
appropriate. 
 
The cost and related accumulated depreciation are derecognised from the financial statements upon sale or 
disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Amount 
paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date are recognised 
as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such date are 
disclosed under capital work-in-progress. 
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7.6 Earnings/(loss) per share 
  

The basic earnings/(loss) per share is computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders for 
the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 
 
The Company does not have potential dilutive equity shares outstanding during the year. 
 

7.7 Income tax 
 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to 
an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 
 
Current tax 
 
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any 
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best 
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income 
taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 
 
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable  right to set off the 
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. 
 
Deferred tax 
 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which they can be used. Deferred tax assets – unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and 
are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit 
will be realised. 
 
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the 
liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 
 
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the 
company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and 
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different 
tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities 
will be realised simultaneously. 
 

7.8 Impairment 
 
a. Impairment of financial instruments 

 
The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortized cost; 
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At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit impaired. 
A financial asset is ‘credit‑ impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future 
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 
 
Evidence that a financial asset is credit‑ impaired includes the following observable data: 
– significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 
– the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise; 
– it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or 
 
– the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties. 
 
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the 
following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses: 

 
– debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and 
– other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life 
of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition. 

 
Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. 
 
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the 
expected life of a financial instrument. 
 
12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are 
possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less 
than 12 months). 
 
In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual 
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk. 
 
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and 
when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is 
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and 
analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward‑ 
looking information. 
 
Measurement of expected credit losses 
 
Expected credit losses are a probability‑weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the 
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with 
the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). 
 
Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet. 
 
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the 
assets. 
 
Write-off 
 
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no 
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the trade receivable 
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to 
the write‑ off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to 
comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due. 
 

b. Impairment of non- financial assets 
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The company’s non-financial assets and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. 
 

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are combined together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest company of assets that generates cash inflows that are 
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. 
 

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs 
to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 

 

 discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU 
(or the asset). 
 

The Company’s corporate assets (e.g., central office building for providing support to various CGUs) do not generate 
independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the 
CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs. 
 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable 
amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

7.9 Provisions and contingent liabilities   

 General 
 

Provisions are recognized when  the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable than an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or 
all of the provisions to be reimbursed, the expenses relating to the provisions is presented in the statement of profit 
and loss net of any reimbursement. 
 
If the effect of the time value of the money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provisions 
due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. 
 
Contingent liabilities 
 
A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may 
probably not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible or present obligation where the likelihood of 
outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 
 

7.10 Events after reporting date 
 

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the 
reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the 
balance sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed. 
 
 
FOR H. N. JADAV & CO.,       FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

 
      Sd/-         Sd/-          Sd/-   

CA Harishchandra Naginlal Jadav    Vimal D Shah             Shaikh Azmathullah  
Proprietor      Managing Director                Director 
(M. No. 040525) 
(F. R. No. 103801W) 

 
Bharuch: 28th June, 2021      Sd/-   Sd/- 
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